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First aArtillery Regiment, Fourth Brigede (formerly Flrst Inrnntrg
Battelion, Fourth Brigade and Saersmento Light Artillery
Reference: AdJutant Ceneral's Files
Location: Jecramento, Sacramento County
Organized Merch 19, 1880*
Reconstituted July 1, 1Bys**

Command Officers

%ggg Comnission
reed Haymond, Colousl , ¥ar. 31, 1880 April 5, 1880

(Retired Oct. 3, 1881)
Thomas H. Berkey, Lieut. Colonel Mer. 31, 1880 april 5, 1880

&dwin H. lMicKee, lajor Mar. 31, 1880 April 5, 1880
Je We Guthrie, First Lleut. April 27, 1880 MNay 19, 1880
: (Promoted - Ad jutant
</ Dec. 3, 1861)
Henry S. Welck, Major Surgeon April 27, 1880 Nay 19, 1880
T. ¥W. Sheehan, Colonel Oet. 15, 1881 Oet. 31, 1881
de. W. CGuthrie, Lieut. Colonel Nov. 16, 1881 Deec. 3, l881
Sdwin H. licKee Iagor
(Re-elected 1e€1
F. Reary, Captein Adjutant Nov. 5, 1881 |Nov. 16, 1881

Henry &. Welch lagor Jurgeon
(Re-clected 1881

Te We Shoehan, Colonel
(Re-elected 1883)
de W. Cuthrie, Lieut. Colcnel
(Re-elected 1883)
Bdwin H. McKes nngor
- (Re-elected 1883
F. Neary, Captain Adjutant
(Re-eclected 1883)
' Henry S. Welch, Major Surgeon
| (Re-elected iaasi

| =000=

*First Infaentry Battellon, Fourth Brigade, and the Sacrsmento
Light artillery, unattached, consolidated end redesignated First
Artillery Regiment, Fourth Brigade, March 19, 1880.

Ad jutant General Report 1880, Sonial Order No. 19, page 76.

*#F¥irst artillery Regiment redesignasted Second Infantry Regiment,
Fourth Brigade, July 1, 1893.
| Ad Jutant General Report 1803-1894, Ceneral Order Ko. 7, page 97.




- (Re-elected 1862

ommending Officers (Comtinued)

Henry S. Welch Laior Surgeon

g Rank Commission
e #e Sheehan, Colomnel
(Re-olected Oct. 5, 1885)
Je We CGuthrie, Lieut. Colonel e,
(He-elected Dec. 3, 1885)
Edwin H. Mokee, Lajor
(Re-elected Agril 4, lct4)
F. Neary, Captaln “djuvant
(Re-elected 188S5)
Eenry S. Welch Laior Surgeon
(Re-elected 1885
J. W. Guthrie, Colonel April 7, 1887 april 20, 1887
8dwin F. McKee, Lieut. Colonel April 7, 1887 April 20, 1887
'!/' F. Neary, llajor april 7, 1887 April 20, 1887
Thomas T. diaeman, Captaln Adjutant April 25, 1887 HNay 13 1887
Henry 5. Welch gor Surgeon
(Re-elacted 1887
Je #. Guthrie, Colonel
(Re-elected 1889)
idwin H. dcKee, Lleut. Colonmel
(ﬂe-elected 1889) ‘
dJohn i, Kennedy, iajor July 26, 1889 Aug. 30, 1889
(Retired Nar. 13, 1890) : :
Fresley B. Johnson Ma jor Ear. 29, 1890 April 15, 1890
Fresley B. Johnaon, Captain Oct. 30, 1889 Nov. 4, 1889
(Fromoted Ad jutant
Mar. 29, 1890)
Arthur M. qaymour, ia Jor Aug. 9, 1892 Oet. 10, 1892

Activities:

Prior to 1880 the Fourth Brigade was composed of the First lniantry

Battellon and one unattached company, the

under command of MajJor T. J. Clunie. On January
Ceneral Clunle resigned and he was succeeded to the eommand by John
F. Sheehan. The brigede was in immedlate need of improvement and

Prigedier-Ceneral Sheehan approved the suggestlon of the Field,
5taff and Line Officers of the First Infantry Bettallion and the
sacramento Light ;rtillerz, unattached, to consolidete both

Sacramento Liiht artillerz.

-

commands 1DtO &n AT ery Regiment. Anotrer reason for the recom-

mendation beling made was thet tbe infantry companies located in
Sacramento each possessed & Catling gun which equipped them as



sctivities: (Contlinued)

aertillery units and the remaining companies plamnned to purchsse
one gun each from the Govermmert.* Cenersl headquarters approved
Brigadlier-Generel Sheehan's application for the change end on
March 19, 1880, General Order No. 19 was issued comnsolidating

the campanies into a Tull regiment to be designated First
artillery Regluent. The table on the following pege indicates
the number of companies and the various changes eand designeations
in the units of the First airtillery Regiment, Fourth Brigade.

After the organizetion of the regimenit was completed an election

of officers was held on March 31, 18680. Officers of the First
Infentry Bettalion and the Sacramento Light aArtillery were entitled
to vote. Major W. I. Wallace, Inspector of 1ifle rractice,

presided at the election resuiting in the selection of Lisutenant-
Colonel Haymond &s Colonel of the mew regiment; Thomas M. Derkey, Lisu-
tenant-Colonel; end E. H. McEee, Major. That the newly elected
officers were popular eand the eiection satisfasctory to ell was
attested to be the manner in which the news was accepted, for

during the evenling the members of the Sacramento companies
serenaded the new commanders at their resldences.**

There were seversl changes iu the regliment during its exlstence.
A cadet company, the Govermor's Guard, was attached to the regi-
ment soon after the organlzation. DBattery D of Flacerville was
disbended in 1881 for non-complience with the law and a new
Battery was immediately recrulted snd stationed at Woodland to

be designated Battery ¥, thereby filling the vacancy in the
regiment. The disbandment and mustering out of Battery E, formerly
Yuba Light Infactry in 1883 Jeopardized the standing of the regi-
mental organization, and threatened for a time to reduce the regi-
ment to a battallon. However, this action wes averted by the
officers of the regiment taking an active interest in the matter
and causing a roll to be opened in Sacramento for new recrults,
The necessary enlistments were secured and & new Battery E with
headguarters at Sacramento was mustered into service. The cadet
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*3acramento Bee, March 20, 1880, page 3, column 2.

¥¥Sacramento laily Record Union, April 1, 1880, page 3, column l.
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Activities: (Continued)

corps end signel corps were both mustered out in 1889 in
accordance with legisletive ects. The members of the cadet
corps were required to attend school, while the regimental
signal corps was dlsecontinued in favor of 2 Brigade Signal
unit.

Shortly after organization the First irtillery Regiment secured
arnory quarters for the officers and it wes planned to establish
& library which would number among its volumes the stendard
works on militery subjects. However, these plans did not
materielize for the ermory site proved to be only a temporary
: one, The repiment in 1881 chased through the Board of Oificers

a plece of property conteining a three story building which

!tf when remodelled accommodated armories for six companles. In
addition to the bullding there was also a large drill hall on
the lot. Due to the effective organization of the Officers
Board, the purchase of the armory was made possible, and the
First Artillery Repiment had the distinetion of havlng juris-
dictlon over the only regimental armory in the State. The cost
of the armory was §10,000.00 which was taken care of by selling
20,000 shares of stock at the rate of §1.00 a share. The
miiitary was to retain 1100 sheres and the remaining shares
were sold to outsiders. This method enabled the military to
always have the controlling power. A Joint stock assoclation
was formed, known as the Armory Hall Association, under the
managensnt of a Board of Directors consisting of seven members.
The companies were reguired to pay the same rent that they had
previously pald for other quarters, sithough the acoommodations
were much better.® Three of the companies paid $50.00 each a

. month for reat, fuel, light and care of arms and Battery B paid

‘ $75.00, while the cadet corps id $25.00. The two out of town

batteries maintained armories their respective cities.

The dedication of the armory of the First Artillery Regiment was
held October 6, 1882, with very impressive ceremonies. An en-
thusiastic crowd of between 1,000 and 1,200 ecitizens were present.
The decorstion of the hall wes & difficult task due to the large
area of wall end celling, to be teken into consideration. However,
this obstacle was successfully overcome by the decoration committee,
who received meny compliments on the affects achieved. Among the
most interesting and outstending decorations was a design measuring
40 x 20 feet. This deslgn comprised en Americen Eagle, with out
streteched wings, perohed upon a National shield, surrounded by a

=QUQ=-

*5d Jutant Genersl Report 1881-1882, page 140.
il
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Activities: (Continued)

wreath of olive brenches, and resting upon the monogrem of the
United Stetes fremed in & golden wreath, and on either side of
which reclined figures emblematic of peace and war. The words
"Defense, notDeflance™ and the initiels of the Natliomal Cuard

were inseribed on the face of the erchitectural decoration,

Below the whole design, in gold letters, on & blue ground ares
the words, "First 5rtiilary Regimenti” and bensath this line

was & profusion of bamners and shields. large Amerlean flegs
were hung over the dreperies on either side of the design.
Further decorative effects were carried out with streaners

and banners hung from the rods auzggrting the gallery. These
panners bore the title of the regiment, neme of companies and
patriotic mottce=a. Beneath the banners slong the gallery front
large shields 1n white, gold, blue and re«d were placed between
the coats of arms and colors of many nations. Upon the walls
of the lower rloor were placed eight large plate gless mirrors,
while lace ourtains and drapes overbung each window and door.
An interesting arrangement of lighting was carried out by the
two illuminators of a new design, burning forty Jits, and above
which great circulator white-glass reflectors mounted in
ornamental, metallic frames. In addition thers were nineteen
a:is lights and four chandeliers in the L extension above and
below.

The regimental band occupled the stage which was 32 x 16 feet
and entertained the guests with a fine instrumental concert.
The concert successfully tested the acoustic properties of the
new ball, with very little echo effects being heard.

The company armories were thrown open for inspection to the
visitors. 4t 9:00 P. M., 4djutant Ceneral John F. Sheehan,
General Lewellyn Tozler, Assistant Adjutant Genersl Burtes,
Staff, and company officers came on the stage and the audience
was called to order. General 3heehan made & brief and fitting
speech of welcome during which he thanked the citizens for
thelr co-operation in making this event a successful ons. BHe
felt that the grand opening gave promise of & soclal and
financial success. Honorables George L. Johnson, one of the
Directors of the Armory Hall Association, delivered the
dedicatory addresas. Honorasble Johnscn commented on the fine
spirit of ownersiip with which the regiment was instilled
permitting them to own the buillding. The hall was dedicated




Activities: (Continued)

to peace, to the culture of the Militsry Acts, to patriotism

and to the brotherhood of msn. Governor George C. Perkins was
unable to attend, sending his regrets through General Sheehan
and also a contribution of $150, for the regimental library fund.

The evenings activities were brought to a close with a bell. The
grand march was led by Drum kie jor Knox, who appeared in & new,
brilliant and costly uniform, and with the complete full regalie
of a drun ma jors He led the line in which there were 380 persons,
with the milltary officers at the head. The bend oeccupled the
center of the floor durinmg the march and formed in & hollow
square with the markers at the corners, and from this center the
line wound in and out in bewlldering entanglement, out of whieh
it ceme into order as the signal was given ror the dance to begin.
The Band returned to the stage and the ball commenced. The whole
affair was a grand success and it was uvnanimously egreed that all
participating had a good time.*

On October 15, 1881, Colonel T. W. Sheehan, formerly Captain

T. W. Sheehan of Battery G, First Artillery Regiment, succeeded
Colonel Creed Eaymond who retired from active service as commander
of the Artillery Regiment. The new commander's first act was to
orgenize the Regimental Board of Officers, end meetings of the
Board were to be hceld once a month, The duties of the Beard
consisted of controliling the business mstters of the regiment

and, in addition, acting as a school of instruction. The officers,
field line and staff, greatly beneflited by this instruction.

Under Colonel Sheehan's efficient administration, battalion drills
were held once & month and the batterles loceted in the city were
required to attend.

Une of the reglments first duties in the esctive service was the
dispersing of a mob and averting a mob attack on an ex-convict,
named Raten, who had caused the death of a prominent citizen,
Mr. James Lansing, of Sacramento, on April 10, 1882. Publiec
feeling ran high, es kr. Lansing had taken no part in the
trouble which caused Raten Lo shoot, except to join in the chase
after the eriminal who was rumning down the slley in the rear of
Lansing's hotel. A riot was feared as talk of lynching was
heard on every side. The municipsl authorities, realizing the
intensity of public feeling, appealed to Gensral J. F. Sheehan

=~000=

*Sacramento Dsily Record Union, October 6, 1882, page 3, column 2.



Activities: (Continued)

to have the Militie in readiness to assist the civie authorities.
Colonel T. W. Sheehan, -commander of the First Artillery Regiment,
was authorized to assemble fully armed and equipped such portion
of his regiment that would be necessary to guell any disturbance.
Batteries A, B, G, and the CQovernor's Guerd were celled out, and
their main dutles consisted of guarding; the armory and Jail.
¥hile not 2 shot wag fired, the appearance of the Militle had
the desired effect end the crowd dispersed and went to thelr
homes. However, a guard wes maintalned sround the county Jjall
for a week, untl the excitement had absted.

The first encampment of the regiment was held at Alameda from
September 4 to 12, 1880. The publle, as well as the military,
dlsplayed greast interest in the event. ZBarly on the morning of
the Pourth, lerge crowds were on hand to welcome the arrival of
the out of town batteries, who were coming to Join the Sacrumento
units. The Band of the regiment was also at the depot, together
with details from the verious Sacramento companles, to recaelve
the visiting commands in .true military form. Battery C of Nevada
City errived at 6:30 A. M.} Battery & of Comptonville, arrived

at 11:00 A.M; Battery D of Placerville arrived at 1:35 P.li. late
in the afternoon the regiment left by the Steamer "Apashe" for
Alameda and remained In camp & week.* The activities during the
Camp of Instructlon consisted of battallon drills, guard mounte-
ings and dress parades. The reglament benefited by their atten-
dance et the Camp of Instruction and the cuting was a great
success from a military point of view.**

In 1885 the regiment ettended the encampment for the entire
Katiopal Guard and Ms jor Hoyal T. Framk, Inspector of the en-
campment, reported that in military eppearance and soldlerly
bearing the First Artillery Regiment was equal to any, end show-
ed careful training. The reglment consisted of six compeanies
four from Sacramento, one from Woodlsend and one from Neveda city
with T. W. Sheehan in charge. The numerical strength of the
regiment in camp was 234 guardsmen consisting of 27 officers and
207 men. Due to lack of funds the next encampment partlicipated
in was not until August 1887, when the regiment went 1into camp

at Santa Cruz for a period of elight days. Colonel W. R. Shafter
was in commend of several corxrpanies of the United States Regulars,

~000=

*Sacramento Bee, September 4, 1880, page 3, colummn 3.

*%3acramento Bee, September 13, 1880, pags I, column 2.
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Activities: (Continued)

who had quarters edjecent to the FPirst irtillery Regiment In
camp. Colonel Shafter's influence snd tireless efforts, in
asaisting the members of the First Artillery Regiment to attain
& higher degree of efficiency, was responsible to & great extent
for the success of this particulsr Camp of Instruction. The
last Camp of Instruction attended by the unit before the trans-
fer of the First Artillery to the Second Infantry Regiment was
in 18%2. Colonel J. W. Cuthrie was in command of the 360
officers and men present. Captein John J. C'Connell, commander
of the First United States Infantry reported thet the men in
many of the companies were puny, narrow-chested dboys, lacking
in robust manhood and erect militery dearing. FHowever, Captein
0'Connell commented on the éxeellent behavior of the regiment
and the slserity with which orders were obeyed and carried out
by the officers and men.

The officers of the First Artillery Regiment participeted in the
annual and semi-annual target practices. Colonel T. W. 3heehan,
the Reglmental Commander, &énd his officers took an active interest
in rifle practice, secur & range and building targets. This
iaterest and co-operation was instrumentel in developing an
incentive for frequent practices which resulted in many of trne

men becoming excellent shots. The regizent scored 22,26 per

cent at the Rifle Shoot in 1887; Sergeant J. L. Huches of the
starf winning the Gold Medsl.

The numericel strength of the regilment indicsted s decresse in
nombership over the pericd from its orgenization in 1880 to the
transfer of the Artillery to the Infantry in 1893. In 1880

there was 475 officers and men, while in 1893 the enrollment was
reduced to 35¢. In 1593 Colonel J. W. Cuthrie, commender of the
First Artillery Rogiment, recommended that the artillery be
transferred to the infantry. In all probability the recommenda-
tion was mede due to the faet that the regiment wes only nomi-
nally artillery, being armed and drilled as infantry. The Board
of location and Organization epproved and asuthorized the transfer .
by Genersl Order Mo. 7, June 14, 1885. The order transferring

and redesignating the First Artillery Regiment es the Second
Infantry Regiment, Fourth Brigade, bedame effective July 1, 1893.*

*Ad jutant Gemeral Report 1893-1894, General Order No. 7, page 97.



